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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The main blcck of the hotel is a 34-story temple form with a Greek Doric order
monumental portico. Corner pilasters with arched panels suppnort a molded cornice
with frieze and entableture. The steeply pitched roof has seven gabled dormers
on either slope, and a large octagonal’ cupola with corner pilasters, paired
round-arched sash, and a tent roof.

Thz highly symmetrical fenstration is 5 x 3 bays. The portico features a large
12-over-12 gable window capped by a pointed-arch louvre with dLip molcding. In
front, the ground level shows French windows with 1-over-1 sash (originally
9-over 9). On the side elevations, two-tiered oriel windows have avched lights,
bracketed cornices, and stick- stvle brackets helow. All other windows have
6-over-6 sash and peaked headboards.

The front elevation, behind the portico, has a strong vertical orientation, in the
center bays. The main entrance has large double doors.with paired, round-arched
lights, a large glazed transom, 3nd plain pilasters. On the second and third
story center bays, directly above the entrance, enormous scroll consoles with
pendant drops support identical balconies with decorative pierced halustrades.
Double doors with arched lights and rectangular surrounds of transom, sidelichts,
and pilasters open onto the balconies from inside.

The hotel's interior plan uses wide central halls on all four floors, each lighted
at the gahle ends by large windows or glazed doors. Connecting these halls in the
center is a cgrand staircase, in which a single continuous rail on turned balisters
ascends from a spiral Newell post in the lobby to the cupola. The rail and well
are curved rather than angled at all corners. The first and second floor doors
and windows have wide molded surrounds with brief shoulders and heavy cornice
heads. Crown moldings, ceiling panels, and some original hardware and fixtures
are also intact.

The only significant changes in the building's appearance occurred.c. 1885, when
the side elevation oriel windows and cupcla roof were added, and c. 1907, when a
commercial block to the south of the hotel was razed. This event afforded the
addition of two connected wings to the mein block: a one-story dining room in
front, with a Georgian Revival storefront, now used as a small shopping mall, and
a plain, three-story bedroom wing in the rear. It was also at this time that the
attic-level ballroom was converted to bedrooms and steam heat and private baths
were irstalled.

At the rear of the property is a one-story 50' x 20' garage, c. 1930, which is
presently used for storage. The garage is constructed of single clay block.
>tepped parapets at the gable ends flank a slightly rounded roof. The garage 1is
in very poor condition ie. roof rotten and mortger crumbling with patches of
improper  repointing. The ‘bdilding is characteristic of early 20th century
.garages. | : .
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
St. Andrews Inl is significant as an outstanding examp1e of a mid-nineteenth
certury small town hotel, and as one of the . earliest of the great resort hotel
for which this pact of the White Mountains became famous. The original plan,
drawr. in 7843 by an unknown architecit, builds on the basic Greek temple form
employed “n nearly 711 oublic buildings of the Greek Revival period. Although
this motif, characterized here by a monumental Doric portico and absolute bilateral
symmetry, provided the appearance of grandeur sought in hotels of that era, tha
architect tempered the classical formalism with elements of the anti-Greek
Picturesque movement. These included arches, peaked window hracs, and a steeply-
vitchhd roof with dormers and a large cupola. The elaborately decorative front
balconies combine with the portico to effect the traditional hotel piazza. The
resulting transitional style, one of the esrliest of its kind in northern New Eng-
land, reflected & growing dissatisfaction with the starkness and inflexible nronor-
tions of Greek forms, and foreshadowed the trend toward anti-form eclacticism in the
second half of the century.

The inn was first opbered in 1850, as Thayer's Hotel, in anticipation of the coming
of the railroad to Littleton. It has since played an important role in the town's
social 1life, providing a popular public house for receptions, political gatherings,
and dally tavern-goers. It achievecd a national reputation afier the Civil Var,
when the surrounding /hite lMountalns became a resort for America's upper classes.
During New Hampshire's long history as the flrst stop on the national presidentizl
campaigns, potliticians from U.,S. Grant and Horace Greely to Nelson Rockefeller,
Richard Nixon, and Jimmy Carter visited the hctel a2nd made speeches from *he front
balcenies. In 1906 Harry K. Thaw, the jealous mursderer of architect Stanford %"hite,
and thus the center of 2 sensational national scandal, was held in custody here for
a month after his arrest in Littleton. In the 1930's Henry Ford attempted to buy
the hotel's portico, bhalconies, and grand staircase to use in his museum of
EZmericana at Dearborn, Michigan. Today, the hotel remains a key visual focal point
in the dcwntown ILittleton streetscane, and continues to serve as an important
public gathering place.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION Beginning at an iron pin in the Main St. sidewalk
23 feet northwesterly of the St. Andrew's Inn portico, the property line runs Soutn’
59° East alorg the sidewalk for 109 feet, thence South 29°Vest for 93 feet, thence
South 35° West for 170 Teet, to the bank of the Ammonoosuc River. = The llne tnen
follows the norther1v bank of the river for 138 feet, at a bearlnc of North 80° West,

thence North 30 ..aast fOY‘ 309 -GEL to the Southe”‘l Slde o 1 S
of beginning. Parcel #U15-27. ’ Y f Main St. and the point
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